History of Royal Cromer
Golf Club established 1888

I nformation obtained from minute books, letters, membersrecords, journals and
periodicals.
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Royal Cromer Golf Club
History
Established 1888

Royal Cromer Golf Club owes its
existence to the enthusiasm and love of
the game of a Mr. Henry Broadhurst
M.P., a Scot who lived at 19,
Buckingham Street, The Strand, London.
In the 1880's, whilst holidaying in
Cromer, he recognised the potential of
land to the seaward of the Lighthouse as
a possible site for a Links Course. The
popularity of North Norfolk at this time
had been noted in the London City Press
in a report dated 5th September 1886:
"The public are greatly indebted to
railway enterprise for the opening up of
the East Coast. More bracing air and
delightful sands are not to be found in
any part of England. The only drawback
is that the country is rather flat. This
remark, however, does not apply to
Cromer, which bids fair to become the
most popular watering place, it being
entirely free from objectionable features".

The site of the proposed golf course was ownedhbyhen Lord Suffield KCB, who kindly
consented to the request of Broadhurst and somaywéher enthusiasts to rent the land.
The Club was instituted in the Autumn of 1887 witird Suffield as President.

Doubtless it was his friendship and influence wiita Prince of Wales which precipitated the
Prince's gracious patronage of the infant club%sth Pecember 1887. Thus Cromer had a
Royal Golf Club even before its official openingtfollowing January.

There are only 37 Royal Clubs in the British IslE8,0f which are in England. Norfolk's
Royal Clubs, Cromer, Norwich and West Norfolk waoeorded that status in 1888, 1893
and 1891 respectively.



The original nine holes were laid out by Mr. Broadit assisted by Mr. George Fernie of the
Great Yarmouth Club. Unfortunately no record existplan form, although from
descriptions in the golfing annals of the time alade examination of the ground, a fair
assessment of the layout is possible. The sitieeoi st tee can still be seen below the
lighthouse in Happy Valley.

G

A spot of putting practice, early 1900's.

The formal opening of the Club was on 2nd Janu8B8]1the first ball struck from the tee by
Benjamin Bond Cabbell. There were some ten or racoees recorded of this auspicious
opening round, the best a 104 by a Mr. J. Robert€onsidering the course was confined to
the most hilly parts, abounding in gorse and brackigh many pitfalls, that score would
appear more than respectable with the then avaikdplipment and bearing in mind the
weather associated with North Norfolk at that tioi¢he year.

Membership records of 1888 tell us of some 78 mesnvbose annual subscription was one
guinea, (£1.05p). Lady members numbered 12 ahdwgh Cromer is only the second
oldest club in Norfolk it may well have the honairbeing the oldest in having a Ladies
Section at inception. The list of founding membmekes interesting reading. Besides the
Prince as Patron, there were the Earls of FifeRwskbery, three Barons (Suffield, Cromer
and Carrington), a bevy of Knights, several MPs amggod many of the local landed gentry.
Interestingly, only 35 were residents of Cromeheos coming from Norwich, Dereham,
London and as far away as Brighton, Newcastle aed &dinburgh.

The first captain of the Club was Rev. H. C. Rogelns graciously presented 7 silver medals
for competitions held during his tenure of captginéle was clever enough to win the only
medal to be retained by its winner.



A number of notable figures played golf at Cromrethie early years. Four Royals played.
The Prince of Wales apparently did not play, altifothe Princess, later Queen Alexandra
did, as did the Prince's brother, Prince Arthurk®aof Connaught. The Duchess also played
as did the Princess Victoria. Political figuresluded H.H. Asquith when Prime Minister
and Arthur Balfour, a very keen golfer who did muotpopularise the game. James Barrie
from the literary world and Alfred Lord Tennysorsalplayed. Sir Arthur Conan Doyle
apparently wrote "The Hound of the Baskervilles'ilathstaying nearby. He also played the
course.

How different the game was in those days. Thepgeant was rudimentary, to say the least.
The fairways and greens, even when cleared of simesphave left a lot to be desired. It
was not until August 1888 that one A.C. Jarvis tiedillustrious honour of completing the
nine holes twice with a score under 100. Subsedtylea was listed as a scratch golfer.

These then were the first faltering steps of tfi@ihClub, much depending upon the
occasional appearances of its rich and aristocnagimbers. They used the Club for the odd
sortie into the turf and bracken of the lighthob#ks. Tragically the first minute book
covering meetings of the first committee was lagthie 1900's. However, minute book 2
resides at the clubhouse and gives invaluable dentation from 1891 onwards.

Very early photographs of the clubhouse portray@mn&o huts rather similar to bathing
machines at the first tee. Later in 1890, a bugkbhop constructed of wood and corrugated
iron - which belonged to Mr. Robert Le Neve - wasghased. It was demolished and
transported from its original site in Hamilton Rpadnverted and re-constructed beneath the
lighthouse at the bottom of Happy Valley. Quiteandthe somewhat oriental architecture of
the building originated is obscure, but it certaimlade a unique home for the Club. In 1892
the clubhouse was extended to include room foioalser table and extra WC's by local
builder A. H. Fox, for the sum of £35.



ORIGINAL CLUBHOUSE
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The chubhinise v 1891, The building was formerly a budcher s shop, having beer dismantled and re crectedon this site in
1860
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In October1891 no less a personage than old Tomid/&urveyed the course by invitation of
the committee. The alterations he advised woulthjs view, make Royal Cromer the finest

9 hole golf course in the country. He also encgedahe club to be prepared to extend the

course to 18 holes in due course.

The influence of the club's membership in 1890 wassiderable, for not only did the Great
Eastern Railway offer return tickets at single farees to gentlemen of Royal Cromer Golf
Club, a special station called "Links Halt" was swuacted to serve the Club. This station
was on the Mundesley to Cromer Beach line and waated on the inland side of the land
once used as the practice ground.

No golfer played without a caddie in those days, @romer had the luxury of having both
first and second class caddies. First class caddee generally men who had a rudimentary
idea of the game and a good knowledge of the candes a consequence, received no less
than 6d (2.5p) a round whereas boys were secord ctaldies , receiving 3d per round.

In 1892 Oscar Wilde - who stayed in the area teenéiVomen of No Importance” - played
golf with Lord Alfred Douglas and found CromerceXent for writing and golf even better.

The same year, 1892, was quite eventful, the dlidptng the "Rules of Golf" as laid down
by The Royal and Ancient Golf Club of St Andrews.

From January 1892 to June 1914 a record of all memgpetitions was kept in an inscribed
ledger, every result written in beautiful coppetelscript.



Royal Cromer's first professional was W. Avest@panted February 1892 with a weekly
wage of

10/- (50p). He was allowed to charge 2/- for ao®hesson and 3/- for 18 holes. He had
previously been a member of the Club and servedmefessional until July 1906.

A small course was laid out in the spring of 1882yoound rented for future course
extensions. The area was that occupied by oueptrdst and 18th holes. This was called
the "Lady Links" and was reserved exclusively sy members in order to relieve
congestion on the course. In 1895 the committeeived a complaint that the rules of golf
were being disregarded by players on the "Lady &IinlAs there had also been complaints
about the condition of this course, a sub-committas formed, which duly reported various
recommendations. A senior caddie was appointetiétresponsible for the preservation of
order on the links", he being supplied with the earof those entitled to play. He was also
allowed to instruct at a fee of 1s.6d. per 18 §i0{By this time a caddie was paid 1/- per
round if his name was on the caddie master's IN9.men were allowed to play on the
"Lady Links" during August and September, excepfier tea foursomes and they were not
allowed to use wooden clubs or cleeks. No childneder 12 would be allowed to play.

IN THE RED

The success of the early and mid-nineties, findiycspeaking at any rate, was not to last.
The AGM of 1897, the year of the Queen Victorialarbond Jubilee, received the
unwelcome news that the Club was in the red tduhe of £300. Some of this was due to
capital outlay in the form of a Ladies Clubhousd also renting more land. But another
cause accounted for the greater part of the defistnow, a constant source of worry was
the frequency of cliff falls, caused it was thouydhy the continual erosion by the sea at the
base of the cliffs. The recommended cure at thed was the erection of groynes to hold up
the beach. A scheme was hatched in the late amidr the defence of the "Lighthouse
Hills" and it was proposed to obtain the servickewhe civil engineer Edward Case, who had
considerable expertise in this field. Case duporeed with a scheme for building a number
of short timber groynes of an economical type whiethad himself developed. It was
proposed the scheme would be financed by Lord &dfind a few other subscribers, of
whom the golf club would be one. The club's cdmition to be £300, one fifth of the total.
It was unfortunate that the committee, in agreeirty the proposals, had not sought the
approval of club members, resulting in considerdbfeeling.

Matters came to a head at the AGM of 1899. Atvkiy stormy meeting a motion of
censure was brought against the committee by Mya@mnurst, who refused to withdraw it
when asked by the Chairman. The motion was defdatex narrow majority, but with
feelings running so high the committee felt comgxtlio resign. The incoming Captain and
Officers declined to accept office. The meeting\iraally adjourned.

A few members of long standing were elected agetaler committee and after much
"wheeling and dealing" behind the scenes and sammanious correspondence, the
adjourned meeting was reconvened a few weeksdat&l promises of greater involvement
of the members. At this meeting the officers aochmittee were unanimously re-elected.

In 1901 temporary one-day memberships (green feesd allowed for the first time, on
payment of 2/6d (12.5p). This was not, howevenniged in August and September, during
which months the course was reserved exclusivelthiouse of members and guests. By



1904 the financial position had improved so mudlt the Treasurer was able to deposit the
magnificent sum of £500 with Barclays bank.

It is interesting to note that much scientific works been done on the erosion of these cliffs
since the turn of the century. While, as in matheofields, experts differ, it is now widely
held that, owing to the unusual and complex geolafghis coast, ground water within the
cliffs is a major factor in causing land slips. iStwas indeed noted as long ago as 1929. A
study in considerable depth was carried out in 1868er the aegis of the department of
Scientific and Industrial Research, following agkasslip which carried away part of the then
17th fairway. The study concluded that the "Casey@es" had helped to prevent slipping
by about 25 years, by which time they had largelgrbdestroyed.

The Coronation in 1902 of Edward V11 was markedh\giteat joy, and "entertainment" was
provided for the caddies, each one also receivin(bp) from club funds.
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THE BRITISH LADIESCHAMPIONSHIP

In the year 1905, the Ladies' British Open Chamghgnwas held at Royal Cromer, by
invitation of the committee, the competitors andW Gfficers being made honorary members
for the occasion. A strong team of lady golfers

States for the event, including the sisters Maitgamd Harriet Curtis. In the final, Miss
Bertha Thompson (Beverley and East Riding) playessMI. E. Stuart (Royal Portrush).
Miss Stuart was bunkered at the 16th and failegetoout after four shots, resulting in a win
for Miss Thompson by 3 and 2.

The championship was preceded by three days ofalanternational matches involving the
ladies of England, Scotland, Ireland and the Un8&ates. It was after these matches that the
Curtis sisters first offered to present a cup tdufe ladies internationals, although
circumstances prevented acceptance of the offdrmany years later. A full account of this
meeting is given in the separate chapter entifléee"Ladies Showed the Way at Cromer".

Zi 'i : G %, " *_ . ., :




3. Miss Harriot S, Curtis

4. Miss Emily Lockwood
(became Mrs. Wm. Wood)

1. Miss Ethel Burnett
(became Mrs, Chas. Clark)

2. Miss Frances
Griscom

6. - Mrs, Samuel Bettle 8. Miss Margaret
(Miss Griscom’s older sister) Curtis
5. Miss Georgianna M. Bishop

7. Miss Molly Adams
(became Mrs. Edward
C. Wheeler)

The 1905 minutes also noted that the caddie-masteld be reimbursed by the club for
competitors who failed to pay their caddies andstimae year a Mr. Callow was paid £10 to
remove his sheep from the course, and not to éehtfeturn for a year.

In 1906 the club, to the intense disgust of allocgwned, received a demand for payment of
income tax in the sum of £2. However, strong tsette the inspector from some influential
members caused the demand to be withdrawn. Algyhdays!

July of that year saw the retirement, sadly throligtealth, of the club professional Willy
Aveston. His successor was W. J. Rush, with éistesalary of £40 per annum.

Later in 1906, selected Cromer residents of go@daztier were allowed to play as short-term
members for the winter months. These worthiestbdu duly proposed, seconded and
vetted and pay £1 for their membership. This whsd raising effort thinly disguised as a
gesture of good will to the town, as the club wag finding the membership too small to
support the facilities offered. The very next yaaroverdraft was sought and economising
became the order of the day. The Green Staff vesheced and the Assistant Professional
laid off. The landlord, Lord Suffield, was inforehé¢hat the club could not afford the
proposed rent. Rabbit killing rights were soldte highest bidder.

In June 1907 a letter was sent to Rear Admiral GC#laghan, C.B. of H.M.S. Leviathan
stating the club was pleased to offer honorary megstbp to the officers of the "Fifth Cruiser



Squadron" for the duration of their stay off Crom@&his set a precedent for many naval
visits following their warm welcome at the club.

A scheme to pipe water to the greens was planndtiautumn of 1907 and although
members were asked to subscribe, they raised @09 6f the £280 required. The work was
put in hand. The Secretary requested permissidestroy many of the club's records and
accumulated correspondence. Unfortunately forréasrd, the request was granted.

The AGM of 1908 shows the club made only £19 profitthe previous year, mainly due to
Lord Suffield waiving £100 rent.

1909 saw the committee vote against the stagintpefEnglish Amateur Championship at
Royal Cromer Golf Club, if it where to be manadpda committee from the Royal and
Ancient Golf Club, St. Andrews.

The summers of the early 1900's were a busy timthéoclub. Many green fee payers
wished to play and extra caddies and green keegaesemployed on a temporary basis.
Such was the crush at the first tee that in 1968 #udie master was instructed to maintain a
daily starting time sheet, ensuring every founthetibe reserved for members only.

The standard scratch score was slowly decreasgd.9@8 it was fixed at 77.

Canon Lyttleton, a member with concern for the atioa of the workers, offered to start a
free lending library for the caddies to furtheritheowledge of the game. The offer was
accepted, but no records exist of how well it fared

SUNDAY GOLF

In the beginning, true to its Victorian originsettules of the club forbade golf to be played
on the Sabbath. But by the early years of the ti@mncentury some members were
beginning to find this restriction irksome and B0¥ a move was afoot to have the rule
rescinded. This met strong opposition, both withia club and among local residents. A
public meeting was called by the Cromer Ratepafss®ciation, which presented a petition
to which the Vicar of Cromer added his voice. Tatter was raised at that year's AGM
where an amendment proposed a poll be taken ohémebers, which was carried. The poll
came down heavily against Sunday golf and at thmuaged meeting the motion was
defeated by a large majority. The question wasedhagain four years later, still failing to
gain the necessary support. The resolution allg@anday play was finally passed in 1912,
with a handsome majority and apparently little psbt

DEATH OF KING EDWARD

In May 1910, King Edward V11 died and the club wed mourning. As was fitting, the
course and clubhouse closed for the day of theréiliaed a letter of condolence was sent to
Lord Suffield, to be conveyed to King George V.islWwas graciously acknowledged in due
course. After a decent interval Lord Suffield ves&ed to approach the new King on the
subject of his patronage, which was granted.
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THE NEW COURSE

The year 1911 saw the beginning of plans for aarestte re-modelling of the links,
following which it was to become substantially tteirse many present members knew
before the most recent alterations completed i®19%¥dvice was sought from H. S. Colt of
Sunningdale as to the alterations to be made. rBéifie scheme could be carried out,
however, lengthy and difficult negotiations hadtundertaken in order to obtain the
necessary land. The club felt unable to pay theasked, and the committee, with the assent
of the members called to a special general meetiagt so far as to give notice of
termination of the lease in the hope of obtainiagdy terms. This apparently caused
consternation among some of the more pessimistiobees: perhaps they had a vision of
their golf club disappearing in a cloud of dusthig hurdle was finally surmounted and the
club obtained security of tenure with a 21 yeaséea

The next problem was, of course finance. The amoiwork needed would be prodigious,
for not only were new holes to be constructed ahdrs substantially altered, the clubhouse
was also to be removed from its home in Happy VYall& new clubhouse would be built on

a site near the Roman Catholic Church on OverstrRoat], giving much easier access.
Altogether the committee estimated £2000 would riedxk raised, which they proposed to
do by means of a debenture issue. An appeal wdiscseall members to support the scheme.
Debentures were to be issued in units of £10 iertftat as many members as possible could
participate. As an encouragement life memberslaip offered to any member subscribing
£100. In the event the issue was oversubscribesbine £270; but it was still decided to

limit it to £2000, as originally intended. As mastbscribers offered sums of £100, the issue
was made in units of that amount and those sulessribere duly elected life members.

The steward’s bungalow (left) was built in 1922. Between it and the clubhouse is the building which contained the
secretary’s office and ladie’s changing room.



J.H. Taylor was called in to advise on the workaging out the new course which was
carried out during the autumn and winter of 19123L9In order to give members
somewhere to play whilst work progressed, a tenrgaorme hole course was arranged using
some of the existing holes. By March 1913 the newrse was so well advanced; it opened
for play on the 17th of that month.

The building of the new clubhouse was under thesugion of G.B. Carvill, a member,
acting in an honorary capacity. The walls of thdding were to be carried out in Hy-Rib
steel with stucco cladding, the roof to be of rié=l tThe interior character and decoration of
the old clubhouse were to be retained as far asiljesold woodwork to be utilised where
practicable.

It had been intended to site the clubhouse beli@dRoman Catholic Church, presumably in
the neighbourhood of the present first tee. Jla&ylor on being shown the intended site, felt
it would be too close to the home green. It wasttiecided to build on the higher ground
across the roadway leading to the lighthouse, wtner@resent clubhouse still stands.

The rebuilding work was sufficiently far advanced & committee meeting on the new
premises towards the end of February 1913. It dvappear pilfering may have been a
problem, a resolution was passed to appoint a mighthman. The Roman Catholic priest,
Father Squirrel, was elected an honorary membehnaps to forestall any complaints
concerning golf balls sliced into the Presbytersdga.

J. H. Taylor returned that autumn to inspect the ceurse. He made various suggestions as
to the placing of bunkers and tees, but appeatefied with the work. The following year
the site of the old clubhouse, with Happy Valleyswsub-let to Cromer Urban District
Council for public recreation. It was let only aryearly basis in case the club should need it
again; this it never did and Happy Valley has ble¢to the town ever since. A large, and in
our climate, much needed shelter stood on thelalthouse site until 2003, when it was
taken down following continued vandalism.

During the summer of 1914 the Beginners' Field lgasto a Mr. Simpson of theaily Mail
"for the purpose of aeroplane flight". The comeetinsisted on indemnification for any
damage, which they thought would most likely refnain the public trespassing on the golf
course.



THE GREAT WAR

August 1914, brought the outbreak of war againstr@ay. It was immediately realised
financial difficulties would result for the club,hich was still heavily indebted to the bank.
The debenture issue had not been sufficient tordbreecost of the new course and clubhouse
and it had been necessary to raise a large adalitiosn.

Many economies were proposed, the most importanglibe reduction of the course to nine
holes which would enable some of the staff to b d&. The debenture holders were asked
to waive their interest to which all agreed andriber Lord Suffield agreed to a reduction in
rent. (The fifth Baron, the Founder President, tied earlier that year.) The Secretary
offered to reduce his salary to £100; later he e@iv altogether. The club was, however,
able to do its patriotic duty by contributing £16the Prince of Wales National Relief Fund.

A considerable number of members resigned owingatioservice and quarterly meetings
and monthly medals were suspended for the durafitve. consequent loss of subscriptions
and green fees served to aggravate the financsiqm, which remained at a low ebb
throughout the war. Indeed, in September 191%til®ok was so bleak that a special
general meeting was held to consider whether thte sthould be wound up, the only time in
its long history that such a drastic step had todrdgemplated. At this meeting, E. M.
Hansell from the chair explained debts were expetemount to £2100 by the end of the
year. Should the club be wound up, this would HaJege repaid and as only £1600 was
covered by guarantees, £500 would still have ttobed. He felt that if the club were wound
up, any new club formed would have little chancewicess. He thought many of the old
members would not rejoin and in the interim petiogel course would deteriorate. There
would be a grave danger of the monies spent omsdaation being wasted. On the other
hand, with money given or promised by a few memberssponse to an appeal which
hopefully would be increased by members yet toaedpthe committee felt it would be
possible to carry on for at least two years. Higetlfies to be the only course open to them.
The meeting finally unanimously resolved that théoshould continue, whilst spending as
little as possible consistent with preventing tbarse from deteriorating to its original
condition..

In 1917 the committee was approached by the Nokiédk Agricultural Committee, who
wished to have part of the course ploughed updogals. This was at first resisted, arguing
it would be against the best interests of the tov@Gromer. They agreed, however, to take a
hay crop off part of the links, which would, of ¢ea, have prevented play on that area for
some months. Early the following year, some 1@sat the Overstrand end of the course
came under the plough. This must have eased tloeaf the green staff, by now reduced
to two. Also in 1918, The War Agricultural Comreigttook over and ploughed up the
practice course. This had been in use by theanyluthorities who demanded other land in
its place. The honorary secretary, W. Kerr, wgsutied to meet the military with a view to
persuading them to take land near the cliff eddefortunately the minutes do not record
whether he was successful.
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ARTHUR €. ROGERS, Headquarters: .
Mayor. GROVE VALE DE POT,
FRED HALL, M.p,
Major, Officer Commanding. EAST DULWICH, S.E.,

TELEPHONE : Mrvs Cross 576.
#eb. 23xra . Y 15
Chas. Larriott s, HEsg.
Royal Cromer Golf Club,
Cromexr.

Iy dear Iarvig L,

By =all means, I will be delizhted to fall in with the suggesiion

tiwmt your Committes have made and forego interest on my lebentures

this year. I quite appreciate that you must have had a difficult
task, as unfortunaﬁely the outbveak of nogtilities coming just in

tite busy monti o he yesar for Cromer, it must have played saq

havos with ¥ou, but nevertheless, with the Captain and Jommittee taat
tre 1lub has ang the guidance andg advice of Your good seif, am surs
they willeveﬂtually PULLl thrsush ail righnt.

Am feeling

Jolly rich to-day, because I have hag LB/4/8 sent

vihrieh I did not know wag coming and thanks to you, skhall be able

to stand iyselt a dinner some nizht during the week, notwit.“ustanding

.

all the vicissitudes I have nad to iace.
iy the bye, Joking 2pnart, =am Sorry you should have had the
trouble to send such a small amount and am taking the necessary
steps to see that my ankers do not cause vou this bother in future,
“hoever itold you that I had been out at the Front at the
bresent had had a dream. I have not been, but am noping to go

®=1d tile sooner T can lick m:r new Yrigade into shape, the better tos

2~

oshag. Larrielt, ©BSQ-

enanse of getting il there. A e et e
v iv ny third regiment since W€ E
1 am nov 1 h 5 ‘ -
i e nave had A 3
1 ought to be satisfied, uescause T & 7
- here 1 am now, hecause hey nave
W T

every time, wut want (o stop
n c of i je and I ska look
orticer in Command of w Srigad
made M UL cel g } - , )
T L/ L ks ¥l ¥ ime comes to eading mwy me
4 1 K ¢hen the tlme ¢
1 iih pleasure 0
Torear 1Ll k]

on the oiller side. | . o
e have undoub tedly #ouw & nell of a joo, put are goin to
- i ¥ - SpL- e W 1 Tder
= i e e we ave dong, 1In O &
rush this euionic military Spl it Lefo
E L . 1 3 ar ehildrens children
it neiti childres nor our o i
2 r childredn,
RE ¥ ke we, ner ou .
| are now passing throush.

I the sroubles
snall nave to face © %

iindest regards,
vours very truly,



BETWEEN THE WARS

With the end of the war the financial position loé tclub remained difficult and at the
beginning of 1919 it was still heavily in debt. dpite of this it was decided not to raise the
subscription for the time being. Lord Suffield wsi8l remarkably generous over the rent
owing him, but let it be known this could not conie indefinitely. A new secretary, Major
Wellesley, was appointed without promise of angpisafor the first year, though he later
received a gratuity of £100. The following yeaw#s considered advisable to raise the
subscription to three guineas, which was agreddeadnnual general meeting at Whitsun.
As members had already paid subscriptions foryteat, they were asked, "as an act of
grace" to pay the difference.

It would seem the club's plight was noted in hitgcps, for in March 1920 the secretary
reported a gift of one of the "cream coloured hgr$om the Royal Mews at Buckingham
Palace, to be used for light duties on the course.

That same year the club for the first time deciegin the Ladies' Golf Union, on account
of the growing number of lady members. A yeanas tater further recognition was granted
to the ladies' section, when both the current atidng lady captains becanaee officio
members of the club committee.

Although records of lady members of the time artdky, there must have been quite a
competitive atmosphere, as several cups were pgezséor ladies competitions during the
1920's, and matches were played against MundeSheyjngham and Royal Norwich.

The Artisans' Club was formed in 1921, limited GrBembers with various restrictions on
time of play. The artisans supported and asstseedlub whenever possible during later
difficult times and the section was finally woungl im 1979, with members being absorbed
into the main club.

COURSE REVISION

A large amount of work was carried out on the ceuhsring those years and compliments
were passed at the 1924 AGM on its improved camditiSad to say, at the following year's
meeting the course was described as disgracefaiosil known member of long standing.
The main complaint concerned the amount of longgrdue to taking a hay crop from the
rough. The meeting resolved that this practicaikhbe discontinued and the grass kept
short.

Following this meeting it was decided to once agailhin a golf architect to advise on
improvements, and invited the now legendary JanmmaglBdesigner of two magnificent
courses at Gleneagles. Braid's scheme consistetlyrohadding bunkers or re-positioning
them, moving tees to lengthen some holes and ngeatio new greens. The work was
carried out over the next two or three wintersspite of the extensions, careful
measurement showed the length to be 6300 yardshvalppeared to be a matter of regret for
the committee. This gave a scratch score of 7deutoday's rules it would be only 70.

The increased amount of work on the course le®#v 1o the purchase of a motor-tractor, to
replace the horses, a great innovation. Sadly thr& seemed to have been too much for it, as
it was "done for" and had to be replaced withiew f/ears. At about the same time it



became necessary to provide for the "parking"” ofomsp (complete with inverted commas)
on the auxiliary course.

With all this expenditure, it was fortunate theldtufinances were now, in the late twenties,
much healthier; even in 1930 the manager was ctarigtad on a most satisfactory balance
sheet. But alas, this happy state of affairs vessided not to last. The great world
depression took its toll and in 1931 the manageonted a grave situation. Receipts were
down and the club appeared likely to end the yatr an adverse balance of some £500.
The usual economies were agreed: salary reduaibrsund, short time working for the
green staff and so forth. Various members madatttwrs and the long suffering landlord
again agreed to a reduction in rent. An attems made to attract 50 new members by
offering to admit them without entrance fee. Quaitew did, in fact join. The next year
some help was forthcoming from Cromer townspeasesome leading residents organised
two dances at the Links Hotel to raise funds, seadi the club was of considerable value to
the town.

In September 1932 a special general meeting whesldal discuss the club's position,
particularly in view of the impending expiry of thease. At the meeting it was announced
that the captain, M. L. van Moppes (he being abdentigh illness), had promised to pay
£200 of the next year's rent and would also guagaatsimilar amount the following year.
He would accept repayment, when possible, by gulwpitestalments of £50. In response to
an appeal, many members present promised sumsaadgemall. Altogether the treasurer
must have been greatly relieved by the outcombefrieeting.

DEATH OF KING GEORGE

King George V died in January 1936. The followgugnmer it appears an approach was
made to Edward V111, for a letter was received ftbenKeeper of the Privy Purse regretting
His majesty was unable to extend his patronageot@RCromer Golf Club. The next year,
following King Edward's abdication and the succesf King George V1, a further
approach was made. This time in addition to the& reply from the Office of the Privy
Purse, again in the negative, a letter came franHibme Secretary, Sir Samuel Hoare,
whose father had been a prominent member of theiclaarlier days. This explained that,
although the King did not feel able to grant hisr@aage, the club would still be able to use
its "Royal" title, which, once granted, continuadanatically.

JUBILEE

The fiftieth anniversary of the club occurred a tleginning of 1938. It seems a little
surprising therefore that it was not until Septenii#87 that a sub committee was set up to
consider the form celebrations should take. Ticgral suggestions were an open meeting
and a dinner to be held in September 1938, aratjiad competition in June. In the event a
two day meeting was held on 2nd and 3rd of Septem®Da the first day, a match was
played between teams led by Lord Suffield and Rpbenheimer respectively. The teams
included Cyril Tolley, twice British Amateur Changmi; E.P. Storey, runner-up in 1924; P.B.
"Laddie" Lucas, who played for England many timed had made his first Walker Cup
appearance in 1936; Henry C. Longhurst, golf wiied later the doyen of TV golf
commentators; J.J.F. Pennick, the well known galfigect; W.D. Robinson, Norfolk County



Champion; G.A. Hill; R.W. Hartley and T.A. Bourn@n the second day there was an open
amateur 36 hole competition for the President's, @yarded for the best scratch score.
The Jubilee Dinner was held on the 9th Septembiaeathe Links Hotel. (Since destroyed
by fire). The large company had its money's waatheast as far as speeches were
concerned. The speakers included the Captailz@ilon Craig; E.M. Hansell and Dr.
Fenner, both founder members of the club; the @apfaGreat Yarmouth and Caister Golf
Club, the only older club in Norfolk, and Lord Seftl, now the third of his line to be club
President.

The following year, 1939, the ladies section agkelde allowed to hold their own annual
meeting to elect the ladies' captain, in order shat could take office in time for the 1st.
January each year. This was duly approved by tireidl General meeting.

THE SECOND WORLD WAR

September 1939 saw Europe, and later the world&g again plunged into war. This was
bound, of course, as in the Great War, to causegtificulties for the club. The "season”
had been cut short and a deficiency in green fessexpected to cause a considerable loss
on the year's activities. Economies were decigeuhu The secretary would forego his
salary and the steward's reduced, as would beutmders of ground staff. Lord Suffield yet
again offered to reduce his rent. The economiegs wet out in a circular sent to members in
December, with a sentiment that all present membvetdd continue to pay their
subscriptions. The annual general meeting of 1840, only 16 members present, resolved
that the present captain and committee should remaaffice for the duration. Members of
the Artisans Club offered to help with work on twrse during the evenings. History does
not record whether this generous offer was takerupin 1941 congratulations were
expressed to the much depleted ground staff ogabd condition of the course.

The club continued to live from hand to mouth dgrihe remainder of the war. In 1942 a
further circular was sent to members asking foradions to keep the club going and Lord
Suffield reduced the rent yet again, almost topiteeerbial "peppercorn.” This, with the
response of the members, enabled the club to suthmough to the end of the war.

The course, or rather what was left of it after\War Agricultural Committee had
requisitioned 40 acres at the Overstrand end, tithplayable and advertisements were
placed in the hope of attracting visitors. Therflmst holes, numbers 4 to 7 of the old course
(now 5,6,10 and 11), were not returned to the cloil 1949.

THE POST WAR YEARS

Shortly after the end of the war in 1945 the cluffesed the loss of its fourth president, the
eighth Lord Suffield, who had succeeded his brottier seventh baron, just two years
earlier. The title, though not the estate, passedrelative with no connection to the Cromer
area. As a consequence it was decided to invitd Templewood, whose home was at
Northrepps nearby, to become president. As Sirueaioare, Lord Templewood had been
Foreign Secretary in Chamberlain's pre war govemimeé&he Hoare family had been
prominent in the district for many years and Loehplewood's father had been an early and
active member of the club. For a variety of reasloord Templewood felt unable to accept
the position and at the 1946 Annual General Meetihdg.. van Moppes, who had done so



much to help the club, was elected. The club'®pe@ver since has been to select its
president from those of its members who have bégneat service to the club.

Also in 1945 the secretary, John Barrow, died. hHé served the club well over a number of
years and throughout the war for no reward. Cheariatically he bequeathed his clubs to the
Artisan's Section.

In 1947 the club was approached by the SoldieiBrSaand Airman's families' Association,
with a view to staging a professional exhibitiontalain aid of Association funds. The
match was duly held on Sunday, 10th August, thggptabeing Norman von Nida of
Australia, Dai Rees, Bill Shankland and Royal Crdsyewn Ernie Plummer.

Von Nida easily won the morning medal with a saufré6, four ahead of Rees who returned
70, followed by Plummer with 71. Bogey for the csmiat that time was 74 (this was in pre-
par days).

During those post-war years repeated efforts wexgento recover the land still under
cultivation, but owing to the country's balancequdyment difficulties food production was
considered all important. At last, in 1949, thedavas released. There was then the thorny
problem of re-instatement, or rather, how to payitto

In the event, the Ministry of Agriculture paid abstantial sum, though not sufficient to cover
the whole cost. It was again necessary to inatgrdutions from members. The club was
still in financial difficulties and by 1957, as sften in the past, economies were called for.
The steward had departed under a cloud, an unaidmearvolatility having been discovered
in both the bar takings and stocks of gin, (althougthe latter case the deficiency had been
made good with water). It was decided not to app@inew steward until the following
summer, and the unfortunate professional, besidiény with work on the course was
expected to put in time behind the bar.

The work of re-instatement of the course, withdfteof volunteers from the members and
some help from local farmers, took some time. iudtl 1954 was it possible to celebrate the
re-opening of the course with an exhibition matciugust. The match was sponsored by
the Forces Help Society; the players were Max FaarlkHarry Weetman, Alf Padgham and
local Ernie Plummer, who returned the magnificexare of 64.

CONSOLIDATION

The fifties and early sixties were, generally spegkyears of quiet consolidation, although
for some years the state of finances continuec ta tause for anxiety. Indeed, until
comparatively recent years caution and economy therevatchwords. A captain of the late
fifties, Alex Scott, put the position nicely whes eported by the lady secretary of the time,
he likened Royal Cromer to "an auld sheep wallowinlt therr' in the Nor' Sea”, though he
felt with the aid of the crew she would get baclktot. Recovery, when it eventually came,
was due in large part to the general increaseamptpularity of sport, golf in particular.

The Queen's Coronation in 1953 was marked by #etien of a flagpole in front of the
clubhouse; a gift from D.F. Burton, who had takeeraas president from M.L. van Moppes.



Miss Aveston, daughter of the club's first professal, presented a silver cup which had been
won by her father as the Captain's Prize in 18Be matter of trophies caused the
committee concern as, when the annual prize gidregy near, some of the holders could not
be traced. One, a doctor, had gone to sea! Haglblvere returned in time for the
presentation.

Progress with a capital P arrived when, in 195&ctekity was laid on in the clubhouse. In
these days of ubiquitous electric power, it isidifft to realise that at such a comparatively
late date, the clubhouse was still lit by gas,ranfof lighting many younger members may
never have seen, except as portable camping eqaiprA@other innovation came two years
later, when the bar was invaded by bandits, the-amaed variety. These "fruit machines”
soon proved their worth, making a not inconsideraiaintribution to finances.

In 1956 a lady was appointed for the first timesasretary. This lady, Mrs Leake, appeared
to have a keen sense of humour judging from thenuittiee minutes, which make very
entertaining reading for the next few years. She apparently much taken with Alex Scott's
accent and dry humour. One quotation has alreadwg biven, but others appear in the
minutes. Another time, "ad libbing" during a vetaunt at an AGM, Scott complimented the
stewardess by saying that, if visitors acquire@athy appetite in the Norfolk air, they

would find a good meal waiting for them. "A hatsample’ the stewardess' coo'in masel,’
but a see some members ha'ea'en it; a'rready éhegdt on weight". On another occasion
the captain, still Scott, "reported his dire wraththe perverseness of Wright (head
greenkeeper). So vexed and enraged had he bebahfertsome few hours he had forgotten
he was an Elder of the Church".

Mrs Leake's successors had at least one reaseng@teful to her. Having endured spartan
conditions for a couple of winters, she could stam®b longer and demanded "either a mink
coat or a gas fire in the secretary's office befaet winter”. She got the gas fire!

With the recovery of the club's finances in 1962piovements were set in motion including
a new wooden floor in the bar, unfortunately calimagy with the fashion for stiletto heels.

Growing numbers of holidaymakers walking alongch# tops necessitated the
appointment of a "patrolman” on Sundays and coripettlays to ensure the safety of
walkers and convenience of golfers.

The 1960s' and 70s' became the turning point fg@RGromer as participation in sport, and
golf in particular, increased. Membership increiasgetil waiting lists had to be introduced.
New equipment for the greenstaff became affordabteseveral new course layouts were
tried with varying success.

LANDSLIPS

On 17th May 1962 a great cliff fall occurred, cangyaway a large part of the then 17th
fairway. The landfall had been preceded by a snalhe the previous month and there was
yet another later in the year. The committee waseld to consider what could be done if the
hole had to be abandoned. No additional land wHsaatime available and for the time
being players learned to cope with the hazardrareowed fairway, with a yawning chasm
awaiting the sliced ball. In 1968 nearly 2000 $reere planted between what are now the
4th and 12th, and 5th and 11th holes. The trees @ersican pine, recommended as being



the most suitable; but the cold, salt laden wimdd their toll, and although a few still remain
between the 5th and 11th, they have not made thetlgithat might have been expected in
over 35 years. They do, however, relieve the lem®0f that part of the course and in recent
years have begun to grow well.

EXHIBITION MATCHES

In 1967 an exhibition match was held
in aid of the Forces help Society.
The players were Dai Rees, Dave
Thomas. Bernard Hunt and Malcolm
Gregson. Although playing a
fourball better-ball, cards were
marked and Bernard Hunt set a new
course record with a 65.

On July 231973, Peter Alliss,
Angus Mackenzie, Ken Bousfield
and Dave Thomas took part in an
exhibition match in aid of Forces

s e L s v e o i Help Society and Lord Roberts
workshops.

SOCIAL GOLF

Cliff Vincent started social Golf in 1964. Thisginated when he and his wife, who was a
novice, had been playing one Sunday afternoon ard im the clubhouse having tea and
scones when another couple joined them. Theydh@amged to play the next Sunday and so
it was Social Golf began. Others quickly joinedrth some were novices and some had
handicaps so they tried to pair a handicap golfér anovice. At that time it cost five
shillings (25p) to play and two shillings and sirpe (12.5p) for tea and scones. Later
matches were arranged with an Ipswich Golf Cluladrome and away basis.

In December 2003 76 people played in the Turkey £8db0 entry fee, 85 had a Christmas
lunch £7. Some money from each event is retaimadhly from the raffle, for this very
popular pre Christmas scramble and because olvihido stipulate that each competitor has
to play in at least 3 Social Golf events duringyear. Christmas lunch is usually followed
by Carols played by the Aylsham & District Silveaf&l or this year (2003) by T.Keeler on
keyboard.

Social Golf 2004, forty years on, has gone fromarggth to strength, numbers had risen to
above 76 and are still increasing. Itis now rexsgd and welcomed by the Committee and
monthly competitions can be found in the club diary

Since 1984, Social golf has been organised antbyd?at Williamson and Margaret Stott,
both having been Lady Captains and Lady Presidewés, 25 years. The Christmas Turkey
trot, so called because the first prize was alviagieys, has over 100 competitors in 2009.



The club now play five mixed matches against otihalos, the teams are mainly made up
from those members who also play ‘social golf'.

ICICLE TROPHY

In the late 1960's a Mr. Gray of Mundesley Golfl¢;lahallenged Royal Cromer to a match
to be played around the Christmas period, the winteam to hold the prestigious (plastic)
Icicle Trophy. The matches were to be played Guaday morning, alternate years home
and away and arranged by the visiting team geitiriguch a week before the match, stating
their numbers and always including the captain@ofessional. The competition at that
time was a four ball better ball, the idea beingvio individual matches quickly in order to
retreat to the warmth of the clubhouse for ale samttiwiches. The current match format
appears to have come into being during the eighttasmpleting the full eighteen holes,
playing two matches per year and totalling all Bal®n to find the winner. The competition
now takes place on summer evenings, followed byal mnd good hospitality. As ever, few
details are recorded and it has been said, on mesgsions of late when coming in soaked to
the skin, that perhaps these matches should revetinter, giving a better chance of dry
weather.

THE SEVENTIES

The new decade ushered in a period of change ardogpenent. The perennial problem of
water supply, so essential in this dry corner afjlgnd, was overcome by the sinking of a
deep bore, leading, later in the decade to theigimyvof a "pop-up” sprinkler system for the
tees and green, with highly beneficial results.

Early in the seventies it was felt that, with ng&00 playing members, the club had reached
saturation point. It was decided to call a Haltm a waiting list and allow the membership
to fall to 500. A new category of "five-day" menmbleip was introduced, to take the pressure
off the course at weekends.

In 1976, after 88 years of being the tenant ofHhaebord Estates, the opportunity arose to
purchase the freehold of the course. Due largethi¢ generosity of the Hon. Doris
Harbord, grand daughter of Lord Suffield, the Feemi@resident, the area of some 116 acres
was offered to the club for £35000. The 1976 AGdfled 93 to 1 to resolve to take
advantage of these very good terms. The purchasdimanced by a substantial grant from
the Sports Council, a small levy on all membetsamk loan and voluntary loans from
members. Within two years loans were repaid aedtiurse belonged to its members.
(Which included the condition that applicants fambership could no longer be black
balled.)

To commemorate the long association of the Harbardly with Royal Cromer, the Hon.
Doris Harbord presented a pair of cups, now knosvtha Harbord Cups, played for annually
by men and ladies respectively.



THE EIGHTIES

The present clubhouse, which is a combination @faold new buildings, was extended in
January 1981. The sign incorporating the clubat ob arms affixed to the south front of the
building was presented by Barnet Rugby Club Gotfi&y, which for many years has held
an annual fixture with Royal Cromer.

Following the purchase of the course and rebuildiregclubhouse, Royal Cromer settled
down to a period of comparative calm. The 1983 A@dproved the formation of the now
large and flourishing Veterans’ Section. The digghsaw the formation of neW®and &
greens, and thé™sgreen was relocated back to its original positiay from the
neighbouring bungalows, which were continually uritieeat of damage from stray golf
balls.

THE NINETIES
CENTENARY CELEBRATION

After much planning, in June 1988 Royal Cromer loedeed its centenary with a week of
celebrations. Guests were received from Royal £advoss the world and many friendships
made. Guests included W.C. Campbell, Captain ef Hbyal and Ancient Golf Club and

Mr. P.B. "Laddie" Lucas, a distinguished war tinghter pilot. In 1943, as Wing
Commander Lucas he commanded the fighter wing & R@ltishall. His father, P.M.

Lucas, one of the finest players in the Club'sdnjstwas honorary secretary at Royal Cromer
from 1892 to 1902.

Celebrations included competitions,
outings and parties. The British and
American Curtis Cup teams re-enacted a
® match, dressed in period costumes, to

| celebrate Royal Cromer's connection with
the Curtis sisters, who after playing at
Royal Cromer in 1905, offered to present a
cup for future ladies international matches.

A further highlight of the week was the presentatio the Club of a silver cup, of similar
design to the Curtis Cup, by Enid Wilson who woa ttophy playing in open competition in
America. Enid Wilson was one of the best lady ptayof her time, a great character and
women’s golf correspondent to the Daily Telegrapt &olf lllustrated.

The week opened with a fly past of Jaguar fightienst RAF Coltishall and ended with a
Centenary Banquet, attended by some 600 peoplegduhich prizes for the various
competitions were presented. The celebrations tvelcbin a marquee sited on the old
practice ground.

..[./HISTORY DRAFT1/Centenary Banquet.doc



TO THE MILLENNIUM

Following the celebrations of it's hundred yearttig Royal Cromer settled down to a more
straightforward routine. Within normal financialreiraints, facilities continued to be
improved. A workplace and storage area for thergkaapers was built, followed by a new
professionals shop alongside the first tee. Negiotia continued over the possible purchase
of additional land alongside the fourth fairway.

The bar and clubhouse were refurbished, ladiesgthgmooms greatly improved and plans
were afoot to update the gentlemen’s changing rodims changing rooms were updated
again in 2000. The Ladies changing facility wasatpd in 2008 and the dining room, lounge
and bar refurbished in 2006.

First priority has always been given the coursdfi@nd continual additions and updates to
machinery, together with the expertise of the gkeepers, help to maintain Royal Cromer as
a premier Norfolk club.

The buggy shed was also built at this time.
In 1999 the Blue course was established for jupiayers.

Royal Cromer celebrated the Millennium with &
members week of various golf competitions,
with prizes totaling £4000, presented at the e
of the week at a Grand Millennium Ball, held i

a marquee on the practice ground. >

John and Mags Neil donated summer house
alongside 18 green. This has been used for ¢
many years to record end of round scores and
also to view the 1Bfairway for those onward t

the club house. :



FROM THE MILLENIUM TO 2010

The millennium celebrations were held in a marqguéhe practice ground opposite the club
on . The week of celebrations entailed golf aodal events. Discussions were held into
the erection of a steel trolley and buggy shecaitye2000. There was also an approach to the
owners of the land used as the practice groundrchase should all the land become
available. However at this time it was proposeddotinue with the leasing which was due to
expire in 2003. The club bungalow was refurbishedl @ffered as a rental property. There
was a proposal to refurbish the gentlemen’s féedlitThere was a dispute over the land
adjoining the 15 tee when the owner erected holiday property witlpeumission. The new
professional, Lee Patterson, had started to malkieaence. There was a review in early
2001 of the course management detailing severasarethe course that could be improved.
The club introduced swipe cards for members tolmge drinks from the bar at a discounted
rate. The card would also be used to access theyB&m for club competitions.. UK
Corpoarte games held 27%28une 2002. Dress code continued to be raised ias\as
especially shorts in the clubhouse. The practicairg lease expired and was not renewed by
the owners. Speed humps were introduced jointlihbyclub and trinity house on the road to
the lighthouse. There had been two cliff fallshe tight of the sixth fairway in 2002.The
history committee was introduced under the chaba¥id Seago, the committee produced a
book which was displayed in the clubhouse and § e@s placed on the new web site. The
site of the new practice
ground was discussed in
Sept 2002. A new course
toilet was proposed for
the area betweer!"5
green and Btee.
Difficulties with hang
glider personnel using
land adjacent to course a
the 14". Asbestos was
found in greenkeepers
shed. Issues with the use
of mobile phones. The
fruit machine was
removed from the bar.
Practice ground opened
in 2004. Smoking in the
clubhouse was a continual problem, eventually 0628 members ban was introduced,
which within months was overturned at an extracadirgeneral meeting, eventually
legislation was brought in by the Government andlsng was completely banned in the
club..Disabled parking access and facilities wateduced. New chipping area opened in
2006 and the on course toilet was built in 2004 Gllub lounge, dining room and bar were
refurbished in 2007 Marketing brochure introduce6

The refurbished clubhouse was opened by Ross Keray 2007. Quiet lounge also closed
in and refurbished. New TV’s installed in loung&aeTcommencement of a program to fit
astro turf to all the paths commenced in 2006. [geriscope fitted to"7tee .security

shutters fitted to buggy shed following a fire. Nplantations between a number of fairways
following Donald Steeles review. New website ag pathe marketing strategy.




LIST OF PRESIDENTS OF ROYAL CROMER GOLF CLUB

1888 — 1945 The Lord Suffield
1945 -1949 M. L. Van Moppes
1950 — 1955 D. F. Burton
1955 -1956 J. H. Rounce

1956 — 1957 T. L. Randall

1957 -1958 G. S. Rounce
1958 — 1959 J. E. Webster
1959 — 1960 H. R. Randall
1960 — 1961 L. J. Crouch
1961 — 1962 R. G. M. Coombes
1962 — 1967 J. Rounce

1967 — 1973 A. R. Churchyard
1973 - 1974 Maj. Gen. Sir J. H. Marriott
1974 — 1975 G. Eyre-Higgins
1975-1986 G.R. Spurrell
1987 — 1991 J. H. Neill

1991 - 1999 D. C. Seago
1999 — 2007 M. J. N. Stott
2007 - M.T. Horner

LIST OF LADY PRESIDENTSOF ROYAL CROMER GOLF CLUB

1986 — 1989 Mrs. S. Spurrell
1989 — 1992 Mrs. M. Woodcock
1992 — 1995 Mrs. J. Paske
1995 - 2000 Mrs. M. Macmillan
2000 — 2002 Mrs.A. M. Davies
2002 — 2004 Mrs. J. Mackinnon
2004 - 2006 Mrs. E. Holmes
2006 — 2008 Mrs P Williamson
2008 - 2010 Mrs M Stott

2010 - Mrs M Neil



LIST OF CAPTAINSOF ROYAL CROMER GOLF CLUB

1888

1889

1954

1890

1891

1892

1893

1894

1895

1896

1897

1898

1899

1900

1901

1902

1903

1904

1905

1906

1907

1908

1909

1910

1911

Revd. H. C. Rogers
1953 G. S. Rounce
R. W. Ketton

J. E. Webster

R. W. Ketton

1955 H. R. Randall
B. Bond-Cabbell
1956 A. C. Scott

B. Bond-Cabbell
1957 A. C. Scott

P. M. Lucas

1958 W. C. Purdy
R. N. Fenner

1959 S. J. Crouch
H. Wilson

1960 R.G.M. Coombes
Samuel Hoare M.P.
1961 P.R. Churchyard
Hon. C. W. Mills
1962 A.J. Dent
Prof. H. F. Pelham
1963 R.J.Balls

E. M. Hansell

1964 G. R. Spurrell
Sydney Peel

1965 A. Watker
Maj. Forbes Eden
1966 C. J. Pike
Maj. C.W Archdale
1967 G. Eyre-Higgins
John W. Scott

1968 C.D. Rash D.F.C
W.E.G. Wyrley-Birch
1969 F. C. Bailey
Lt. Col. H. B. Winter
1970 R. H. James
W. J. Kerr

1971 G. R. Spurrell
H. C. Dent

1972 H.W. Peak
Capt. N. McFarlane
1973 R. H. James
F. T. Simpson

1974 D. C. Seago
J. M. Richardson
1975 P. E. Storey
H. R. Burroughs
1976 J. S. Roye



1912

1913

1914

to

1919

1920

1921

1922

1923

1924

1925

1926

1927

1928

1929

1930

1931

1932

1933

1934

1935

1936

1937

1938

1939

H. G. Muskett

1977 H. Teanby

H. G. Muskett

1978 E. C. Bachelor

1979 P. H. Reeves
Rev. H. H. Pellham
1980 |. B. M. Stanford

1981 W. W. Parrott

D. Davison O.B.E.

1982 M. T. Horner

Sir Frederick MacMillian
1983 R. W. Bushell

Capt. G. L. Palmes D.S.0O.
1984 W. E. Ratcliffe
J.P.O. Mead

1985 A. C. Lawrie

G. Head

1986 P. D. Williamson
Major S.W. Trafford

1987 |I. B. M. Stanford

E. H. Pelham O.B.

1988 B. D. Woodcock
Brig. Gen. W. F. Clemson C.M.G.,D.S.O.
1989 R. E. Eaton

Sir Geo. R. L. Hare Batrt.
1990 D. G. Boyce

Lt. Col. Sir Fredk. Hall Bart., M.P.
1991 M. J. N. Stott

J. Barrow

1992 J. M. Yarham

W. A. Clowes

1993 P. G. Jarvis

M. L. Van Moppes

1994 T.R. Bensley

M. L. Van Moppes

1995 D. Gotts

W. J. Pearson D.S.O., M.C.
1996 R.L.Holmes

W. J. Pearson D.S.O., M.C.
1997 D.J. Ley

D. F. Burton

1998 J. Milligan

E. H. Youngman

1999 P. E. Remnant

Sir Gordon Graig

2000 K. M. Taylor

2001 P. Nicholls



to

1944

1945

1946

1947

1948

1949

1950

1951

1952

The Lord Suffield
2002 R.T. Mould

2003 E. Lettington
L. e. Van Moppes
2004 F. Margrove
D. F. Burton

2005 A. Barraclough
H. J. Foot

2006 A.T. Hill

J. H. Rounce

2007 A. Keates

A. H. F. Baldwin
2008 J Rodwell

T. L. Randall

2009 M Hazard

Lt. Col. P.G. Upcher D.S.O.
2010 A Malin

D. F. Burton

2011 G. Wilton

LIST OF LADY CAPTAINSOF ROYAL CROMER GOLF CLUB

1920

1921

1922

1923

1924

1925

1926

1927

1928

1929

1930

Mrs. Besley

1971 Mrs. C. D. Rash
Mrs. Besley

1972 Mrs. I. Glyn Jones
Lady Betty Trafford

1973 Mrs. B. M. Brotherton
Lady Betty Trafford

1974 Mrs. . B. Parrott
Mrs. A. Burton

1975 Mrs. I. P. Coman
Mrs. H. Sparke

1976 Mrs. M. L. Woodcock
Mrs. H. Palmes

1977 Miss. G. M. Gayner
Mrs. R. G. Cross

1978 Mrs. M. Macmillan
Mrs. P. Williamson

1979 Mrs. J. Paske

Lady Betty Trafford

1980 Miss. E. Sheringham
Lady Wigan

1981 Mrs. J. Mackinnon



1931 Miss. Burton

1982 Mrs. G. Reeves
1932 Miss. Lyttleton

1983 Mrs. H. Fielding
1933 Miss. Gray

1984 Mrs. A. M. Davies
1934 Miss. D. Lyttleton

1985 Mrs. D. E. Bushell
1935 Mrs. Van Moppes

1986 Mrs. P. M. Williamson
1936 Mrs. Hadley

1987 Mrs. M. Stott
1937 Mrs. Rump

1988 Mrs. I. P. Larkins
1938

1989 Mrs. J. M. Brown

to Miss. B. Van Moppes

1990 Mrs. B. Rossi
1946

1991 Mrs. E. Holmes
1947 Mrs. Hadley

1992 Mrs. E. Crossfield
1948 Mrs. Rump

1993 Mrs. H. Lawrie
1949 Mrs. Rump

1994 Mrs. M. Neill
1950 Miss. P. Rounce

1995 Mrs. P. G. Cooke
1951 Miss. N. Lyttleton

1996 Mrs. D. Stewart
1952 Mrs. W. F. Chapman

1997 Mrs. E. Sands
1953 Mrs. W. F. Chapman

1998 Mrs. P. Harrison
1954 Mrs. J. H. C. Thompson

1999 Mrs. E. J. Bartman
1955 Mrs. J. H. C. Thompson

2000 Mrs. M. Nicholls
1956 Mrs. J. E. Webster

2001 Mrs. L. Fields
1957 Mrs. G. R. Spurrell

2002 Mrs. B. Riches
1958 Mrs. R. G. M. Coombes

2003 Mrs. J. Kemp
1959 Mrs. M. L. Sumpter

2004 Mrs. H. Campbell-Smith
1960 Miss. D. A. Baker

2005 Mrs. V. Tallowin
1961 Mrs. G. R. Spurrell

2006 Mrs. S. Driver



1962

1963
1964
1965
1966
1967
1968
1969
1970
COUNTY CHAMPIONS
GENTLEMEN
1984 Tim Hurrell (A)
1985 Tim Hurrell P)
1997 Grant Price (A)

Mrs. G. R. Spurrell
2007 Mrs S Steventon
Miss. D. A. Baker
2008 Mrs M McRae
Mrs. G. Eyre-Higgins
2009 Mrs D Brewer
Mrs. G. Eyre-Higgins
2010 Mrs B Cook
Mrs. G. R. Spurrell
2011 Mrs S Lettington
Mrs. R. T. W. Fitt

Miss. J. D. Gooch

Mrs. M. D. New

Mrs. E. C. L. Williams

LADIES
1962 Mary Rust (A)
1964 Mary Rust (A)
1974 Mary Davies (A)
1975 Mary Davies (A)
1978 Mary Davies (A)
1981 Mary Davies (A)
1983 Mary Davies (A)
1987 Mary Davies (A)
1989 Tracey Williamson (A)
1991 Tracey Williamson (A)
1992 Tracey Williamson (A)
1993 Tracey Williamson (A)
1997 Tracey Williamson (A)
1998 Tracey Williamson (A)



Gross

Gross

Gross

COURSE RECORDS

9" August 1953 G. B. Wolstenholme

27" July 1992 Nick Price

29" August 1996 Mrs. Tracy Williamson

3d" July 2002 lan Ellis
8" June 2003 Ryan Pudney
27" July 2003 Steven Peet

COUNTY PRESIDENTS

George Spurrell

John Neil

Mike Stott

Mike Stott

LADY COUNTY PRESIDENTS

Judith MacKinnon

COUNTY CAPTAINS

Mark Williamson

LADY COUNTY CAPTAINS
Mary Cobb
Mary Davies

Judith MacKinnon
Tracey Williamson

(A) 67 Net 68
(P)  66(P)
(A) 68 Net 69
(P) 66(P)

(A) 64 Net 66 Gross

(A) 64 Net 66

1980
1994
2004
2008

2006

1992, 1993 and 1994

1968 — 1969
1986 — 1987
1991 - 1992
1996 - 1997



GREEN KEEPERS

The Clements family — Since the first days of thibc
there has been a Clements on the green-keepirig staf
and for most of that time the head greenkeepebbas
that name.

John Clements was the first and served the club for
over 30 years. His son Jimmy followed him on te th
staff, although he chose never to become head
greenkeeper. After John that post was held
successively by his son-in-law Jimmy Baker, then
Harry Thomson, then Frank Wright, then Jack
Clements, Jimmy’s brother.

The longest record of service to Royal Cromer @dlib in
any capacity is held by Jimmy Clements’s son George
George was more often than not referred to byditsef’s first
name of Jimmy. He joined the greenstaff as a hdyon
1924 and retired in 1978, having been head grepekder
most of his career. He worked part time for a nends years.

In 2010 the head greenkeeper was Roger Plummerigpa of
the club’s longest serving professional, Ernie Fhan Roger
left school at 16 becoming an assistant to hisdjeaher in the
pro’ shop. Sadly, the club could not support asistant at that
time but happily for Royal Cromer, he joined thee-keeping
staff until 1975, when he joined Mundesley Golf KltHe
returned to Royal Cromer in 1987 as Head Greenéegpere
his talents were needed to bring the course upreach for the
Centenary, one year later. His son Stuart joine@hthusiastic
green staff in 1995 and hopefully the “Plummer amtion” will
continue for many years to come. Roger retired uigust 2010
and has been succeeded by Mark Heveran, who wakefuty
Head Greenkeeper at Royal Liverpool, having alstkea at
Loch Lomond.




In September 2010 Roger retired from Royal
Cromer as head greenkeeper and was replaced by
Mark Heveran. Mark was deputy head greenkeeper
at Royal Liverpool and has worked at Loch

Lomond and Vallentuna (Sweden). Mark has
developed skills at Royal Birkdale (2008 Open
Championship) and at other venues. In 2011 Mark
has begun a development plan to make Royal
Cromer one of the finest golf courses in the area.

SECRETARIESAND MANAGERS

Nowadays golf club secretaries have a very impori@e within the club and are becoming
increasing termed as managers. In the early day® @lub secretaries appeared to simply
look after the paperwork on behalf of the committee

The T official secretary appointed in 1892 with a salaf§25 p.a. was Alfred Burton. He
was succeeded some 10 years later by W.J. Ker.pdst of Honorary Secretary continued,
however, in the person of P.M. Lucas who servechfi@92 until 1902. Major Beale
became paid secretary with full executive powels @ourse, staff and clubhouse in 1904
whilst W J Kerr continued in an honorary capacitgmding to some correspondence and
committee minutes.

The system of both paid and honorary secretariesmeed for many years with Major Beale
being succeeded by Colonel Charles Marriott as paidetary. Colonel Marriott steered the
club through the difficult days of the First WoNdar and in later years his son, General Sir
John Marriott present the club with a large pictwredow in memory of his father.

Following the war G S Clarke was appointed secyateanager, whose duties included that
of steward. It was not until 1932 that the morealsystem of paid secretary and separate
steward and stewardess was reintroduced when thviBaras installed as secretary. Mr.
Barrow appeared to have great command of the Hnigliguage and a copy of his now
classic reprimand (below) to a member whose languaas somewhat colourful, is displayed
in the bar.

It was not until 1932 that the more usual systerpaidl secretary and separate steward and
stewardess was reintroduced when J. Barrow waalledias secretary. Mr. Barrow
appeared to have great command of the English égegand a copy of his now classic
reprimand to a member whose language was somewloatrful, is displayed in the bar.

In 1956 Mrs. Leake was appointed on a part timésksthe T lady secretary of the club.
Her keen sense of humour is indicated not onlydyy‘pithy remarks” in committee minutes,
but also the request for “either a mink coat oaa fire” to help survive the arctic conditions
of her office. The gas fire won!



In 1956 Mrs. Leake was appointed on a part timéskassthe T lady secretary of the club.
Her keen sense of humour is indicated not onlydyy‘pithy remarks” in committee minutes,

but also the request for “either a mink coat oaa fire” to help survive the arctic conditions
of her office. The gas fire won!

The position of secretary was then held on a jpa#g basis until 1968 with the appointment
of Graham Eyre-Higgins as the first full time searg for many years. He was followed in
1974 when Tom King held the office through to 1984m was a member for 12 years prior

to his appointment. During his wartime servicaamvigator on Lancaster bombers, he was
awarded the DFC whilst stationed with No. 635 (Ratler) Squadron.

ROYAL CROMER GOL¥ CLUB, |
CROMER,
NORFOLK.

TELIMHONE:
cromin 19.

3igt Mag 1956r l

Dear Sir,

Teet the sugceptibilities of our
vigitors, cn whom We jepent for gupport, be |

somrit? ke we Lo recuest
offended, the wommliiee agks

that your expressicuns o® Aisgo.rovel at 8
j aacessful meo he couthed 1k
srot not ¥hodly guore 63fud ME] oous] i

-~

aore moderate lunguuct than reretofore.

Yours truly,



Following his retirement the position was upgrattethat of Secretary/Manager, with the
extra duties incurred with increased membershgdf, gthance and ever growing legislation.
From 1987 the post was held, with the exceptioB.dflowson, for relatively short periods
by:-

1987 — 1988 E. Robertson
1989 — 1998 B. Howson

1999 — 2000 T. Duke

2000 — 2002 R. Fields

2002 — 2005 Mrs. D. Hopkins
2005 - 2006 Mr J Hoskins
2006 - Mr G Richardson



PROFESSIONALS

W. Aveston was appointed the first
professional of Royal Cromer, on a wage of
10/= (50p) per week in 1892 until 1906. His
tuition charges being 10d. for 9 holes and
15d. for 18 holes.

He was followed by W. J. Rush who, in

1922 took an assistant called Ernie Plummer
who later became the professional and
served the club until retirement at the age of
70 in 1968. His grandson, Roger Plummer
is now our Head Greenkeeper.

Ernie’s shop was a far cry from the modern
Pro’s shop of today. A dark, dingy glorified
shed smelling of dust, leather and wood
glue. Most clubs displayed were
reconditioned and second hand. His lessons
were more concerned with advice such as
“wood in rough — wood in head” than the
finer points of swing technique. He was
certainly one of Royal Cromer’s great
character.

Ernie was followed for a relatively short period Aggus Mackenzie, a young Scot who
emigrated to Tasmania in 1974.

In June 1974 Robin Page took up the mantle. §
Born and bred in Kings Lynn he was the first eve
winner of the Norfolk Boys’ Championship at the
age of 13 and won the title again 4 years later.
Winner of the Norfolk Open Championship in
1982 he was twice Norfolk Alliance Champion mﬁ -

1980 and 1986. Robin retired in 2000.




The current incumbent is Lee Patterson, past wiahtre
Suffolk Open and P.G.A. Championships, Norfolk étice
Championship in 2000 and Norfolk Matchplay Champion
2002. He was captain of the Norfolk P.G.A. in 200de’s
assistant for many years was Ryan Pudney.

Ryan first started playing golf at the age of Dats Golf Club. He was a member at the club
for 15 years during which time he won their Cluba@ipionship twice whilst also breaking
the course record on two occasions. The last reaio8@ stood for 7 years up till the summer
of 2009.

During his final year at Diss Golf Club Ryan reeted
the Suffolk Men’s 1st Team helping them to beat
Lincolnshire in winning the Anglian League Title in
2002.During the Summer of 2002, after graduatinip wi
a BA(Hons) in Sports Management from Central
Lancashire Univeristy, Ryan joined Royal CromerfGol
Club.Before entering into his PGA qualification Rya
helped Royal Cromer to win the Myhill Trophy in 200
He also broke the long standing Amateur Course Rleco
shooting 66 (6 under par) in the Gold Coast Cup. A
record that although has been equalled still stands
today.In 2007 Ryan reached final qualifying for the
British Open at Carnoustie. He managed to come
through regional qualifying at Hollinwell (Notts)oB
Club, before missing out at Montrose Links.

Ryan was Assistant Professional at Royal Cromealfoost seven years. Since turning
professional in October 2003 Ryan has been a kggposter of both the Norfolk and East
Region PGAs, enjoying competing in both Pro-Ams iaividual strokeplay events. In
2009 Ryan won his first Pro-Am at Fakenham (68)p%ang it up with another victory in
March 2010 at Barnham Broom (70). In 2010 Ryanthashonour of being Captain of the
Norfolk PGA. Ryan is now the professional at Muridggolf club.

ARTISANS

In 1921, the committee considered the formatioaroArtisan’s club. Because this would
need the assent of a general meeting, it was atpdedn such a club on a temporary basis,
pending approval by the Annual General Meetinga#2L This was duly forthcoming, but it
was considered advisable to continue the tempdiraityon membership of 50.

The section was eventually wound up in 1979. Tleseartisan’s later became Captain’s of
the club.



ROYAL AIR FORCE COLTISHALL

Royal Cromer first became associated with Royalirce Coltishall during the second
world war. Distinguished fighter ace, Wing Commeantaddie Lucas, son of one of the
Club’s most prominent members, P.M. Lucas, (Hono&ecretary 1892 — 1902 and Club
Captain 1893), was posted to command Coltishapiffi wing in 1943. He later wrote,
“Often in those times | would fly my aeroplane lower the course just to be satisfied that
the holes | remembered from the halcyon days wéké¢here.....and then there was that
blessed sight of the Cromer cliffs, with the counsstling above them, as we returned —
sometimes anxiously on a protesting Rolls-RoyceliMengine — across 120 miles of
swirling North Sea”.

O 10th July, 1986 Laddie Lucas was invited to make an official visit, with kis wife Jill, to RAF. Coltishall, about 15
wiles from Cromer. In 1943, as Wing Commander Lucas he commanded the fighter wing at Coltishall, and this visitwas
very much a sentimental journey. As a sowveniv, Growp Captain Mike French presented him with-a framed photographof
1 Hurvicane and Spitfire flying over Royal Cromer golf course.

The special relationship with the Club was ensuvgd membership made available to
golfers from RAF Coltishall, the numbers varyingeothe years. Many of those players
represented the Club in matches and County congetit A match was played annually
with the Club.

Coltishall has always been generous in helpingtiib, loaning equipment, arranging a
“Centenary Fly Past” and presenting a new fladheoQ@lub, which has been flown at Royal
Centenary celebrations around the world.

In 1993 the Club and R.A.F. Coltishall, representeelqual numbers, took part in a match
versus U.S.A.F. Lakenheath. This home and awayreavas known as the “Mini Ryder
Cup”, the home team hosting the meal, often aCtfiieers Club, U.S.A.F. Mildenhall. One
match in progress at Cromer was halted midway, alith).S.A.F. personnel ordered to

return to base immediately. The date was the inte®/11. Matches continue to take place.

As R.A.F Coltishall comes close to closure, (du2007) a friendly and mutually beneficial
relation unfortunately will come to an end. Ro§abmer wishes all personnel, past and
present, “Happy Landings”.



JUNIORS SECTION

The junior section has maintained a good crop ohgsters in its history all of whom played
off scratch or better, notably Tracey Williamsonatd Williamson, Steven Peet, Kris Coop,
Charlie Bright and more recently Amber Ratcliffénellatter has represented England in a
number of junior and ladies competitions and atEHggears was off scratch.

The junior section was ably organised during tisé 28 years by Bernie Peet, Alan Hill and
Gill Bullimore.

In 2007 the club was the first in Norfolk to be aded Golf Mark.

VETERANS SECTION

As more leisure time is becoming available to theygeroaching
retirement, Royal Cromer attracts many older mesdro wish
to socialise and also compete with their contempesat other
clubs.

| As aresult 1983 saw the formation of a veterans@e
Membership cost £1 and is available to those aged%b. The
section has grown from strength to strength arDit0 there are
well over 200 members. The2Bnniversary was celebrated in
2008 with a dinner and competitions.

It is an active organisation with inter-club matsheonthly
stableford competitions and lunches.

On 16" May 2008 the section held its®®nniversary. Members played a team stableford
round, there then followed a dinner with a numdeguwests from the original membership,
some of whom started the section.

BARNET RUGBY CLUB

Since 1948 Royal Cromer has been pleased to weltwerebove society who have been of
great support to the Club over many years.

A golf fixture, the format of which is an annualt@&aay match, in October, for the ‘Cromer
Bell’, followed by dinner, in the early days at fflHouse Hotel. Barnet played their own
competition on the Sunday morning, with heavy hdemla the night before, for the ‘Bolton
Pot’. The 48 visit in 1987 was marked by a presentation to RG@yamer with a bench for

the 13" tee. In 1988 members of Barnet were guests amksp®at the centenary. Thé's50
visit was marked by a presentation to the club weather station, situated in the lounge bar.

The 60" visit was marked by a presentation of a new flalg.p



TRIVIA

CROMER LIGHTHOUSE

The Cromer lighthouse overlooks thé"lble — the club’s signature hole.

The present lighthouse is, in fact the third ‘lightt Cromer.

The first light, warning mariners of the dangeraswyust a fire burning on a platform on the
parish church’s tower in the town.

In 1717, a brick lighthouse was built
on high ground to the east of the town.
Originally lit by a coal fired lantern,
this was replaced in 1719 by a flashing
light known as the ‘will o the wisp'.
This was lit by fifteen oil lamps with
reflectors and rotated by clockwork
machinery.

Two young women, the first
lighthouse keepers received £1.00 as
weekly wage for both of them and
reputably, kept the place very ‘neat
and tidy’.

Landslips that still plagued the cliffs were eveegent in those days and when in 1932, a
particularly big cliff fall threatened the lighthse, a new one was planned further inland.

Built in 1833, this then is the present lighthousan eighteen metre high octagonal tower,
little altered as we move into 2010.

Originally powered by oil lamps, gas lighting wastalled in 1905. This was converted to
electricity in 1958 and automated in 1990. Thetlighs converted to state of the art
electronics in 2002.

A helipad was also built on a level piece of gromedrby.

The empty shell of the first lighthouse fell oviketcliff some 22 years prior to the opening of
Royal Cromer Golf Club.

The lighthouse dominates the fourteenth and isleal itarget line for the big hitters from the
tee.



BRICK KILN WORKS

The land on which the first
and eighteenth fairways are
situated was once part of a
large brick kiln works.

The large dips you can see
from the first and eighteenth
tees are where the four large
brick ovens were situated.
The gully to the right of the
first was where the clay was
extracted from. This stretched
right across to the second tee
and is generally known as
‘The Osiers’ in other words
‘we can't use’.

M anagement Committee Minutes- 1891 to 1942
Snippets from the old Minute Books

1891
5th October The Secretary instructed to write to Mim Morris of St. Andrews, to be
asked to lay out the course and to ascertain hisste

A member complained as to the press coveragesohtitumn Prize
Meeting....... "the Committee did not consider thegter sufficiently grave to
call for their interference, further they failedgee anything objectionable in
the remarks made in reference to his play".

27th October Mr. Morris, from St. Andrews had syee the course and suggested certain
alterations, which would, if carried out, make ieoof the finest 9 hole
courses in England. Part of the suggestion stétedopening between furze,
that is to say the clear ground where a fair dweelld land, should be 80
yards wide".

1892

12th January Mr. Alfred Burton appointed Secrettry salary of £25 per year and Mr. P.
M. Lucas appointed Hon Secretary.



16th February W. Aveston appointed to the offic€ndfessional at a weekly salary of 10/-

10th March

29th April

24th April

21st July

1894

and that he be allowed to charge 2/- for a game3anor a lesson of 18
holes, including a caddie.

Correspondence from Henry BroadhurstPMvho felt slandered in a speech
by a Mr.Hamilton, the subject matter being the préion or not of Public
Houses being open on a Sunday The inference epeehe that Mr.
Broadhurst was against Sunday opening, but supgpbdimg able to have a
drink himself on a Sunday at the Golf Club. Hegldurom the committee
some "public satisfaction for this infamous calurhnyhe committee
replied,...."that the duties, for the performantevbich they exist and were
elected, do not extend to taking such steps asopeapby you".

Resolved to increase Clements wage fo i€ week and to give him £1 for
the use of his donkey on the course.

Offer received to hire 22 acres of laatch rent of £42 p.a. re extension of
course.

Specimens of notepaper, stamped with a die as steghky Lord Suffield,
approved as Club notepaper.

An enlarged picture of H.R.H. The Prince of Walesshed in monochrome,
had been sent to the Club on the directions oRthhélon. Lord Suffield, to be
hung in the Club Room. His Lordship would alsodsarsimilar portrait of
himself for the same purpose.

The Committee thanked his Lordship.

Lord Battersea wrote asking the name of "Cyril FdoWbe erased from the
cup presented by him and that his name as nowhesedt in place.

Willie Aveston's entrance fee for the ©@®If Championship at Prestwick,
to be paid by the Club, together with £5.5.0d.eopenses.

12th January Mr. J. W. Scott offered to presentld gnedal to be called the "John Scott

May

1895
13th July

Gold Medal".
W. Aveston to be entered for the Open Golfi@p@nship at Sandwich.

Permission given for resident Light House Keeperglay the course after 5
o'clock in the afternoon. They would not be eatitto use the Clubhouse.

Club donated £1.11.6d. towards expenses in commegiith the formation of

a County Championship Competition.

Formal opening of 18 hole course. Matche arranged between J. H. Taylor
(Champion) and another.



Letter from St. Andrews re proposed testimonialéon Morris. The Club to
open a list and head it with a donation of £1.

Complaints received over the way Ladies had besmeglarding the rules.
Secretary to post a notice in the Clubhouse retugeptayers on the Ladies
Course to strictly observe the rules of the game.

11th October "The School Attendance Committee efEhpingham Union" wrote regarding
the employment of boys as caddies and enclosimgwy af the Bye Laws
under the Elementary Education Acts.

29th December Several names were submitted asdzdesdifor election. ..."it having been
decided that two blackballs should exclude". Tamas were separately
submitted, Mr. Boardman elected.

1896

April A scruffy page, torn from a pocket book, isped in the Minutes Book and
reds,..."The following report with reference toytan the Ladies Course was
adopted".
1. The numbers playing over the Links be limitetha discretion of the
Committee.
2. The kind attention of the Green Committee bkeddo the upkeep of the
course.
3. No men be allowed to play on the course duludg, August and
September, unless in after tea foursomes. Usaoflen clubs and cleeks to
be disallowed.

1897

April Erection of a Ladies Club House approved jvitie exception that Ladies be
not admitted to the General Dining Room.

May Approval to expend the sum of £2 in the hirdlags etc. for decorating the
Clubhouse on the occasion of the Queen's Diamoliteéucelebration.

1903

15th April Resolution passed allowing daughtersmeimbers the same privileges as sons
of members - to be allowed to play over the greeri®/- per annum.

3rd June Agreed that "no gentleman's servant bevadl to play on the Golf Course at
any time"

1904

20th May Steward instructed not to cash chequegi$dors
Newspapers - resolved to take "The King" newspapdrdiscontinue "Land
and Water"
Ladies Golf Union accepted the invitation to hdid 905 Ladies Open
Championship at Royal Cromer, week commencing Rz



22nd June Resolved the Steward and Mrs. Smallleaetiowed 2 tons of coal during
the year.

6th December Gratuities - John Clements £1 ana bftaoal, others £1 each. 3 boys 5/-
each

1905

10 June For 3 days prior to Easter and Whitsuramakin July, August and September,
ladies will be allowed to play before 9.30, betwdédr30 and 12.00 and
afternoon between 3.30 and 4.00. Otherwise, eXoepbmpetition days, at
any time.

25th July Mr. Callow to be offered £5 to remove $tieep from the links for 12 months.

14th August Children of visitors and lady beginneesallowed to play over the new field
for 2/6d per week.

1907
17th January Club agreed to pay £10 for the grazgids of the links.

31st January W. Aveston resigned his appointmeRrafessional
23rd May Proposal for playing Sunday Golf defeated.

24th June Letter sent to Rear Admiral George Alaghban C.B., H.M.S. LEVIATHAN.
The Committee would be very pleased if the Officgrthe "Fifth Cruiser
Squadron” consider themselves Honorary Membersigineir stay at
Cromer. (Though not on Sundays)

25 September Permission renewed for LOCAL RESIDERT®ay during winter months
on payment of £1.

17th October Committee would not oppose formatioNarfolk Golf Union - but were not
strongly in favour.

1908
17 September Extra men to be taken on in Octobeetm the putting greens.

17th November John and Jas. Clements, employeiriamber of years, to be paid
additional 1/6d per week

1909

10th April Committee replied they were not in favad the Amateur Championship
being managed by
St. Andrews Golf Club.

18th May Officers of the "Kings Own Royal Regim&tdrfolk Yeomanry" and "Sixth
Battalion Norfolk Regiment" be made Honorary Mensbauring their stay in
camp at Northrepps.



1910
30th March  Home and Home Matches to be arrangddmolal Norwich Golf Club.

7th May In consequence of the lamentable deathioMdjesty King Edward V11 the
Clubhouse and Links would be closed on the daysofumeral - Notice to be
sent to all members. Mourning paper and envelopsered.

9th May The Whitsuntide Meeting of the Royal CrorG®If Club will be abandoned.

1911
5th June Committee resolution to A.G.M. for playpallowed on Sundays defeated.

1912
27th May Resolution allowing play on Sundays cakrie

1913

8th November Changes to be made to the coursen@ateand improvements), as advised
by J. H. Taylor listed in detail.

1914

11th April Happy Valley to be let on annual tenatmayCromer Urban District Council.

30th May Death minuted of Lord Suffield, Club Posit.

20th June A letter from Mr. Simpson of the Daily iMesking for loan of the Beginners
Field for 2 days fot the purposes of AeroplaneliligGranted

20th August Letter from the Golfers Club Londoniagkf the committee would be willing
to offer the Clubhouse as a hospital during the viReply stated "would be
given serious consideration, in the event of realessity, on application from
the proper authority.

1914 (cont) £75 forwarded to Buckingham Palacénaditst donation to the Prince of
Wales National Relief Fund.

9th September The mother of A. R. Thompson, greenivaallowed 10/- per week during
his absence - his having joined Kitcheners Army

11 December Heavy reduction in expenditure requiedch as maintaining a 9 hole course
only, selling the horse, reducing Mrs. Thompsoh&eance, reducing rents
paid, reducing secretary's salary etc.

1915
5th March Resolved no Golf Meetings during duratdthe war.

4th May Allowance to Mrs. Thompson discontinued.

September  The Club was in serious financial diffies. An E.G.M. held as to
continuing or winding up the Club. A resolutior the Committee to



continue their efforts with a view to carrying dretClub was carried

unanimously.

1919

14th January Decided to sell one stack of hay, keepther in case they purchased another
horse.

Boundaries of land sub-let to the Cromer Couagikeed. (Happy Valley)

Resolved to make application to the military foe tlelease of Jack and James
Clement for re-employment on the course.

1st August It was decided to allow Ladies to platha same hours as Gentlemen on
paying the same Green Fees.

Ladies Medal Day changed from Saturday to Wednesd
W.D. Land Agent had agreed to pay £12 for relgyire 8th green.

24th October The Honorary Secretary of Sheringhah Gub to be an Honorary Member
of this Club.

igtzho\]anuary 4 or 5 boys to be employed at 15/week to weed the greens. Any fees
earned caddying to go to the Club.
Greenkeepers to be paid new agricultural rat26fper week.

15th March  Club to join the Ladies Golf Union.
Secretary reported he had received the gift ofafrike Cream Coloured

horses from the Royal Mews at Buckingham Palace.

24th Sept Greens staff requested increase to negubigral rate of 46/- per week. To
be told should they insist on the increase, thi wtauld be reduced to 5.

1921

2nd Sept Temporary formation of an Artisan GolflCagreed. Subsequently formally
approved at AGM in June 1922.

1922

19th June The Club had been approached to holthaeatdion in aid of the Sunshine
Home, entrance fees to go to the Charity. Refused.

The same meeting agreed to hold a Boxing Day catiguetor the
Overstrand Hotel Challenge Cup. The Hotel to giyeize and the Club a
prize for the best scratch score.

1923



12th January Agreed to build a house for the Stéwaacepting Bullen's price of £695

28th May

30th July

1924
10th June

31st March

1925

15th July

1st. Sept

1926

inclusive.

Mens wages to remain the same at £2.arfitithey should not be paid the £3
in lieu of harvest money as in previous years.

Notice to be placed in the Club Roommglalayers, particularly those

without caddies, to do their utmost to keep th&ces and when failing to do
so, should at once signal the following players on.

AGM - Proposed and seconded Lord Sdffielasked to succeed his father
in the Presidency of the Club.

Reported the Ch:Cob purchased six yegrdor £25 was done. Decided to
try to purchase 1 horse for £30 or 2 for £50.

Subscription list opened for Jack Clements, wias about to be married.
James Braid to advise on course altersitierms £9. 9. 0d. per day plus
expenses.

Decided to play a match against the arson 12th September.

2nd February The course had been carefully measyretiain and in spite of recent

7th April

5th May

1927
19 April

4th June

1928

alterations, was still only 6300 yards, making matxh score of 74. The
Secretary was deputed to see the Secretary ofahetZUnion with a view of
getting a scratch score of at least 76.

Decided to postpone any alterations todieaps till the scratch score was
fixed by the Golf Unions Joint Advisory Committektbe British Isles.

Position of Head Green Man instigated, giving hontcol over all the men
and horses.

The scratch score confirmed as reduced #éno 76.
Authorised purchase of a Motor TractolV2wers and a Tip Cart at a cost of
£243.

Owing to the increased number of motors U.D.Chd@pproached to prepare
a "Parking Ground" on the practice links.

AGM - Members attention drawn to the desmen Visitors Fees, which was
the same all over the Country owing to the Coak&tiast year.



29th August Insurance taken out with London Liveipend Globe Insurance Co. to cover
the Club, Members and Artisans third party risksease of pedestrians being
hit on the course. Cost 3d per head per member.

3rd December Decided to purchase a Motor MowerjoMBErafford recommended an "Auto
Motor Pusher”, made by the firm of Randels.

It was decided to sell the horse and harness.

1929

7th January A subscription be offered of £3. 3.t6diards the establishment of a Board of
Research for the Scientific Investigation of Gressking Problems.
Guaranteed payable for 5 years to Norfolk Courtif Gnion.

1930
19th June Telephone to placed in the SecretaryiseOf

1931
23rd May AGM - Suggested "that Artisans be allowegbin the Club”.

5 Sept Gold Coast Challenge Cup presented toltiie C

Agreed in future a man going on the "Sick List" Mo paid his wages for 2
weeks. Health Insurance and Club monies to bendefdi to the Club. No pay
after 2 weeks.

1932

17th May Ladies to be allowed to use the Mens' ®obm, except during the time of
the mens meetings.

30th July Town dances to assist Club - Committembex had met several of the
leading towns people who realised the value ofGhi to the town. They
had agreed to give two dances to assist the Cle. Links Hotel had given
the use of the hall for the dances. A vote of kisamas recorded "to the
people of Cromer".

1932

27th August The Club was in financial difficulties. Two committee members told of a
discussion with Lord Suffield who told them "heantled to run the Club
himself as soon as the lease terminated and seigakdngements could be
made with the Debenture Holders". The Committeengfly felt this to be
detrimental to the Club and they were unable tamoteffect proposals to
meet any overdraft, because of the uncertaintyedday his Lordships
suggestion. Would he grant them a new lease frean tp year and what was
the lowest possible rent he would accept undeptlsent financial position?.

6th September Mr. Van Moppes (Captain) would pasdLSuffield's agent £200 in cash and
would guarantee the rent for the following yeaheTlub to pay him back
guarterly. A hearty vote of thanks extended to Wan Moppes.



7th September At an Extraordinary General Meetiafjed to consider the position of the
Club. The meeting informed of the above plus #w that Lord Suffield had
reduced the rent by £75 for the year and also redttthe Captain's donation
of £50. Members then pledged various donatiomsvatig the Club to carry
on.

24 September Mens wages to be same as at Sherindthaumns 39 four winter months, 50
remainder of year. Head Greenkeeper £2. 6. Quaireler £1.17.6d. weekly.

1933

22 September Steward and Stewardess given 2 miootics.

18th November It was decided the notice be withdraw

1934

3rd March Looking for new Steward, but notice torent Steward not to be given until
after Easter by which time, hopefully, a successmuld be found.

1935
Request from Col. W.H. Besart enquiring whetherGhe would present to
the Norfolk Regiment the stuffed wheatear in theecaver the bar?.
Declined.

1936

1st June Notice to be given to the Steward and Stsgs.

11 September A proposition made to play the finahd of the Muskett Cup over 36 holes.

A letter was read from the Keeper of the Privy Bugspressing His Majesty's
regret at being unable to extend the privilegei®fHatronage to the Royal
Cromer Golf Club.

3rd October As the Steward was occupied with a dealbar, it was decided to adjourn
this meeting till October 10th for the purpose wirgg him notice.

1936

10th October Notice duly given. It then transpitieid would involve losing the services of
Doris Griffin, who had decided not to remain underew Steward. The
Steward then asked if the Committee would consgidggrensing with the
services of his wife and allowing Doris and himgeltontinue in charge. He
added he would do his utmost to give satisfactibhe Committee had
no wish to lose the valuable services of Dorise TGommittee to write to
absent Committee members to obtain their views assix month trial.

1937



10th April On the proposition of Lord Suffield tisgeward given a months notice, use of
the bungalow might be required at the end of twekse Doris was given a
months holiday with full pay.

Lord Suffield reported he hoped to hear shortlyklie Majesty King George
V1 had consented to become Patron of the Club.

1938
22nd January Letter received from the Privy P@#&e intimating that the Patronage of
King George V1 could not be granted to the Club.

16th April A letter from Sir Samual Hoare Bart. (fHe Secretary) saying it was not
possible for His Majesty King George to be comedtatbut added that the
absence of this Patronage does not affect the'Rtbgal”, which, once
granted, continues automatically.

1940

11th May Resolution at AGM that for the duratiortleé war the present Captain and
Committee continue in office.

Army green fees to be 2/- per day for officers,far other ranks including
AT.S.

The Artisans offered their help on the course adtienings, if required.
Gratefully acknowledged.

1942
Clubs rented reduced by Lord Suffield to nomigalpa.
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